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Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To, 

The Members, 
Denave India Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Denave India Private Limited (hereinafter 
referred to as the 'Holding Company") and its subsidiaries listed in Annexure I (Holding Company and 
its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group") , which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as 
at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the 
consolidated financial statements" or "the financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 
2022, its consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, its consolidated changes in equity 
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143( 10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI and the relevant 
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 

Other Information 

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the 
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board of Directors 
Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The 
Board of Directors Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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Chartered Accountants 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
infomrntion identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the Board of Directors Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, 
we are required to communicate the matter to the Management and describe actions applicable in the 
applicable laws and regulations. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true 
and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection, appropriate 
implementation, application and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing 
the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Chartered Accountants 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3 )(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's repo11. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which 
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for 
our audit opinion. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 
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Chartered Accountants 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Other Matter 

a) We did not audit the financial statements of the Company's three foreign subsidiaries whose financial 
statements reflect total assets of <3,868.43 lakhs (before consolidation adjustments) as at March 31, 
2022, total revenues (including other income) of < 11,973 .3 8 lakhs (before consolidation 
adjustments) and net cash flows amounting to< (40.14) lakhs for the year ended on that date, as 
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by 
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of those foreign subsidiaries are based solely on the reports of the other auditors and 
additional procedures performed by us. 

b) We did not audit the financial statements of the Company's one foreign subsidiary whose financial 
statements reflect total assets of<2.82 lakhs (before consolidation adjustments) as at March 31, 2022, 
total revenues (including other income) of <Nil (before consolidation adjustments) and net cashflows 
amounting to <Nil for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements. These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the 
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the 
amounts and disclosures included in respect of the foreign subsidiary are based solely on the 
unaudited financial statements, information and explanations provided by the Management and 
additional procedures performed by us. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us by the Management, this financial statements/ financial information are not 
material to the Group. 

All the subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial 
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their 
respective countries. The subsidiaries mentioned in para (a) above have been audited by other 
auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The 
Holding Company's management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located 
outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments 
made by the Holding Company's management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and 
affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and based 
on the information and explanations provided by the Management and the conversion adjustments 
prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited by us. 
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Chartered Accountants 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on 
the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial 
information certified by the Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Rep01i) 
Order, 2020 (the "Order"/"CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of sub-section ( 11) of 
section 143 of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and 
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO repo1i issued by us as per our audit report on the 
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse 
remarks in this report except for certain matters requiring improvement. In respect of foreign 
subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, rep01iing of clauses of 
CARO is not applicable to such foreign subsidiaries. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the 
other auditors and on the information and explanations provided by the Management on the separate 
financial statements as referred above and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as noted in 
the 'Other Matter' paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that 

(a) We/ other auditors have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

( c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss including 
other comprehensive income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 
Company as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
Company, none of the directors of the Holding company is disqualified as on March 31, 
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial statements 
reporting of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in Annexure A. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial 
statements repo1iing; 
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Chartered Accountants 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repo1i in accordance with 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

The provisions relating to section 197 of the Act became applicable to the Holding Company 
during the end of the year i.e., with effect from March 24, 2022 due to status of the Holding 
Company becoming 'a deemed public company' as a result of conversion of status of its 
Group's holding company from a private limited company to a public limited company. In our 
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 
by the Holding Company to its directors from the period the Holding Company became 'a 
deemed public company' till March 31, 2022 is in accordance with the provisions of Section 
197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under 
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position 
in its consolidated financial statements - Refer Note 30 of the consolidated financial 
statements; 

11. Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the 
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long­
term contracts; 

111. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company. 

1v. (a) As disclosed in Note No.48(a) of the consolidated financial statements, the 
Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries have represented that, to the best of 
their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company or any of its 
subsidiaries to or in any other persons or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company or any 
of its subsidiaries ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) As disclosed in Note No.48(b) of the consolidated financial statements, the 
Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries have represented, that, to the best of 
their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of its subsidiaries from any 
person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of its subsidiaries 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guaran~; ~e1~urity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
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Chartered Accountants 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 ( e ), as provided under (a) and 
(b) above, contain any material misstatement; and 

v. As disclosed in Note No.17.2 of the consolidated financial statements, the Company 
has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. Hence provisions of section 123 
of the Act is not applicable. 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 20.08.2022 

For VARMA & VARMA 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN 004532S 

o~· 
MITHUN LAKSHMANA PAI 

Partner 
M No. 219813 

ICAI UDIN - 22219813APLRUK7263 
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPGH (2) CLAUSE (f) UNDER THE HEADING 
"REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DENAVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED MARCH 31, 2022. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial statements reporting of Denave India Private 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. All the 
subsidiaries of the Holding Company are incorporated outside India and hence the reporting on the internal 
financial controls on the financial statements is not applicable to them. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The management of the Holding company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial statements reporting criteria established by 
the Company consideri11g the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chaitered 
Accountants oflndia (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the holding company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls over 
financial statements repo1ting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") 
issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial statements reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls over financial statements repo1ting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial statements reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial statements reporting. 

Meaning oflnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Statements Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial statements reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial statements reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal financial control over financial statements reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that 
1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and 

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Statements Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial statements reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of 
the internal financial controls over financial statements reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial statements reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, as mentioned in note 47 of the consolidated financial statements, the Holding Company, 
has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system over financial statements 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial statements reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial statements reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 20.08.2022 

For VARMA & VARMA 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN 004532S 

~~ 
MITHUN LAKSHMANA PAI 

Partner 
M No. 219813 

ICAI UDIN - 22219813APLRUK7263 
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Annexure-I 

List of entities included in the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022: 

Denave M SDN.BHD, Mala sia 

Wholl Owned Subsidiai 
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DENA.VE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U85110DLI999PTC190362 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022 
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

Non-current Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
Other intangible assets 
Right - of- use assets 
Financial Assets 

( i) I nvestm en ts 
(ii) Loans 
(iii) Other financial assets 

Deferred tax assets (Net) 
Income Tax Assets (Net) 
Other Non-Current Assets 
Total Non-current Assets 

2 Current Assets 

Financial Assets 
(i) Trade receivables 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 
(iii) Loans 
(iv) Other Financial Assets 

Other current assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQlflTY 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 

Total Equity 

LIABILITIES 

Non-current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

(i) Lease Liabilities 
(ii) Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 

Total Non-current Liabilities 

Note As at As at 
No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

2 
~ 
_) 

4 

5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
IO 

11 
12 
13 
14 
15 

16 
17 

18 

215.02 

279.77 

15.84 
343.98 
314.74 
541.89 

1.02 
1,712.26 

3.049.40 
2.524.07 

12.92 
43.37 

2.402.23 

8,031.99 

9 744.25 

178.76 
5.054.98 

5,233.74 

I 78.65 

292.85 

471.50 

38.51 
93.95 
82.17 

0 ()() 

371.28 
320.4 7 
432.34 

1,339.62 

2.805.22 
I /J32.24 

20.30 
I .717.38 

6,175.14 

7 514.76 

173.74 
.l.854.51 

4,028.25 

221.06 

221.06 
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DENA.VE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U851lODLI999PTC190362 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31,2022 
(All amounts are in lakhs o[Jndian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 
Note As at As at 
No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

2 Current Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 19 
(ii) Lease Liabilities 
(iii) Trade Payables 20 

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(B) Total outstanding dues of other than micro enterprises and 

small enterprises 
(iv) Other financial liabilities 21 

Other current liabilities 22 
Provisions 23 

Total Current Liabilities 

TOT AL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Other Notes to financial statements 2-53 

89.25 87.05 

134.76 82.97 
677.33 647.31 

2J36.93 1.685.29 
756.80 615.09 
243.95 147.74 

4,039.01 3,265.45 

9 744.25 7 514.76 

For and on behalf of Board 
As per our separate report of even date attached 

For VARMA & VARMA 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN 004532S 

SNEHASHJSH BHATTACHARJEE 
Whole-time Director 
DIN: 00188864 

Place : Noida 

Date : \<;?, .~ 

RAMASWAMY NARAYAN 
Director 
DIN: 00304905 

Place: Noida 

Date: \'if .o!S'. 2il;. )_ 

G~ 
MITHUN LAKSHMANA PAI 

Partner 
l\1.No.219813 

Place : Bangalore 

Date : &o. ett-ao&~ 
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DENAVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - USS! 1ODLl999PTC190362 

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are i11 /aklts of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Revenue from Operations 
lJ Other Income 

III Total Income (I+II) 

IV Expenses 
Cost of Services 

Employee Benefits Expense 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Other Expenses 

Total Expenses (IV) 

V Profit before tax (III-IV) 

VI Less: Tax expense 
a. Current Tax 
b. Tax relating to prior years 
c. Deferred Tax (includes MAT credit adjustment) 

VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 

VIII Other Comprehensive Income 
A.Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss and its related 
income tax effects 
i) Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 
ii) Income Tax effect 

B.Items that will be reclassified to profit or 
loss and its related income tax effects 

IX Total Comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 

X Earnings per equity share 
Nominal value of share 'fl/-(PY: 'fl/-) 

a. Basic 
b. Diluted 
Significant Accounting Policies 

Other Notes to financial statements 

Note 
No. 

24 
25 

26 
27 
28 
29 
30 

2-53 

For the period For the year 
ended ended 

March 31 2022 March 31, 2021 

26,485.96 
152.90 

26,638.86 

19.545.40 
3.961.05 

36.54 
267.69 

1.452.27 
25,262.95 

1,375.91 

239.59 
(0.63) 
22.52 

1,114.43 

(103.24) 
29.00 

(74.24) 

1 040.19 

6.23 
6.13 

21,732.87 
203.73 

21,936.60 

14.916.22 
3.854.42 

89.46 
458.17 

1.745.00 
21,063.27 

873.33 

234.99 
( 55.40) 
96.36 

597.38 

(22.27) 
6.20 

(16.07) 

581.31 

3.44 
3.25 

For and on behalf of Board 
As per our separate report of even date attached 

For VARMA & VARMA 

SNEHASHISH BHATT ACHARJEE 
Whole-time Director 

DIN: 00188864 

Place : Noida 

Date : (fS.of?, "2 c J(cZ 

1~?? 
RAlASW AMV NARA VAN 
Director 

DIN: 00304905 

Place: Noida 

Date:)~. O~ .2l:l2-2. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN 004532S 

MITHllN LAKSHMANA PAI 
Partner 

M.No.219813 

Place : Bangalore 

Date :~0·08.~0.;\~ 
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DEN A VE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U8511ODLl999PTC190362 

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE VEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in /akhs o[ Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

A. Equity Share Capital 
Equity shares on I/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid 

Particulars 

As at March 31, 2021 
Changes in Equity share capital during the year 

As at March 31, 2022 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars 

Balance as at April 01, 2020 
Add: Profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income 
Stock Options accumulated 
during the year 

Foreign Currency Translation 

Reserve 
Interim Dividend paid 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 
Add: Profit for the year 
Stock Options excercised 

during the year 
Other comprehensive income 

Stock Options accumulated 

during the year 
Foreign Currency Translation 

Reserve 
Balance as at March 31, 2022 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Other Notes to financial statements 

For and on behalf of Board 

Securities 
premium 

SNEHASHISH BHATTACHARJEE 
Whole-time Director 
DIN: 00188864 

Place : Noida 

Date : (@.o13-.;1o1-~ 

Reserves and Surplus 

General Employee Retained 
Reserve Stock Earnings 

options 
reserve 

72.16 133. l 5 3,214.27 
597.38 

47.65 

(200.00) 

72.16 180.80 3,61 l.65 
I, 114.43 

(81.98) 81.98 

129.57 

72.16 228.39 4,808.06 

RAMASWAMY NARAV AN 
Director 
DIN: 00304905 

Place: Noida 

Date: 18.oR·.2.t>).2.. 

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Reserve 

12.03 

22.17 

34.20 

30.71 

64.91 

2-53 

Number 
of shares 

1,73,73,741 
5,02,617 

1,78,76,358 

Other comprehensive 
income 

Other Items of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income 
(Remeasurement of 

defined benefit plans) 

(28.23) 

( 16.07) 

(44.30) 

(74.24) 

(118.54) 

Amount 

173.74 
5.02 

178.76 

Total 
amount 

3,403.38 
597.:lS 
( 16.07) 
47.65 

22.17 

(200.00) 

3,854.51 
l.114.43 

(74.24) 

129.57 

30.71 

5,054.98 

As per our separate report of even date attached 

For VARMA & VARMA 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN 004532S 

MITHUN LAKSHMANA PAI 
Partner 

M.No.219813 

Place : Bangalore 

Date : Oto ·O~· ..2o.:2..L 
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DENAVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U85110DLI 999PTCI 90362 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in /akhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Profit before tax as per the Statement of profit and loss 
Adjustment for: 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Interest on Income Tax refund 

Interest income on others 

Interest Income on unwinding of discount -

financial assets measured at amortized cost 

Interest and finance charges on Employee loans under Ind AS 109 

Interest and finance charges on lease liabilities under Ind AS 116 
Provision for doubtful receivables 

Bad debts written off 

Re-measurement gains (losses) on Defined Benefit Plans 

Employee Stock option expense 

Foreign currency translation reserve 

Unrealised exchange rate fluctuation 

Interest expense 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Movements in i1'orki11g capital 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade receivables 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Loans and advances (Long term) 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Loans and advances (short term) 
(Increase)/ Decrease in financial assets 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current assets 

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Non Current assets 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables 

Increase/ (Decrease) in financial liabilities 

Increase/ (Decrease) in other current liabilities 

Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 

Cash generated from operations 
Income taxes (paid)/Refund 

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 

B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchase of property. plant and equipment 

Investment in Fixed Deposits (net movement) 

Interest received 

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds/( repayments) from short term borrowings 

Payment of lease liabilities 

Proceeds received from exercise of ESOPs 

Interest paid 

Buy-back of equity shares by subsidiary 

Dividend and Dividend Distribution tax Paid 

Net cash used in financing activities 

For the year For the year 
ended ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

1.375.91 

267.69 

( 15.24) 

(7.82) 

2.10 

12.51 

(60.70) 

40.36 
( 103.24) 

129.57 

30.71 

(43.23) 

20.21 

1,648.83 

( 188.19) 

( 15.84) 

(12.92) 

18.03 
(684.85) 

( 1.02) 

81.81 

452.54 

131.11 

168.00 

1,597.50 
(336.30) 

I ,261.20 

(242.65) 

1.44 

(241.21) 

(120.56) 

5.02 
(20.21) 

873 .33 

458.18 

( 123.01) 

( 15.48) 

(6.34) 

20.80 

(5.38 J 

2.50 
(22.27) 

47.64 

22.17 

5.07 

51.23 

l,308.44 

I,683.39 
(3.10) 

2.69 

(224.24) 

64.95 

( 149.89) 

14.72 

18.20 

2,715.16 
993.98 

3,709.14 

(7.13 J 

(62.55) 

( 16.10) 

(85.78) 

(2.145.21) 

( 125.40) 

(51.23) 
(83.14) 

(200.00) 
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DENAVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CTN - lJ8511ODLI999PTC190362 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Net increase/ decrease in cash and cash equivalents during the year 
before effect of foreign exchange fluctuation 

Effect of Exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 

Net increase/( decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year* 
* Comprises 
Balances with banks 

- in current accounts 
- in EEFC account 

Cash on hand 

Total 

2 Figures in brackets indicate cash outfiows. 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2022 

884.24 

7.59 
891.83 

1,632.24 

2,524.07 

2.015.07 
508.85 

0.15 

2,524.07 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2021 

1,018.38 

(0.32) 

1,018.06 

614.18 

1,632.24 

1.089.4·+ 
542.60 

0.20 

I ,632.24 

3 P'revious year figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessaiy. 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Other Notes to financial statements 

For and on behalf of Board 

SNEHASHISH BHATTACHARJEE 
Whole-time Director 

DIN: 00188864 

Place : Noida 

Date : 18 ·06 J.e.t< 
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As per our separate report of even date attached 
For VARMA & VARMA 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN 0045325 

~~ 
RAMASWAMY NARAYAN 
Director 

MITHUN LAKSHMANA PAI 
Partner 

M.No.219813 DIN: 00304905 

Place: Noida Place : Bangalore 

Date: 18. o~.O\.o~.ll Date : 6)c.e8.J.'tl~~ 
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DENA VE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U8511ODLl999PTC190362 

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31 2022 

IA. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Denave India Private Limited ("the Company" or "the Parent" or "the Holding Company") was incorporated on January 12, 
1999. The Company is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act 
applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at No. 406A, Indraprastha Tower, 6, Commercial Complex, 
Wazirpur, New Delhi - 110052. The Parent and its subsidiaries are engaged mainly in the business of providing Sales 
Enablement & Other support and Staffing services. 

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 18, 2022. 

lB. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of consolidated financial statements 

i. Compliance with Ind-AS 

The consolidated financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind 
AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 
2013. The Company has voluntarily adopted lnd AS with effect from April 1, 2020. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (~) which is also the Company's functional cmTency. All amounts are 
in lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
a) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies; 
b) Equity settled Share Based Payments; and 
c) Long tenn leases as given in the accounting policies 
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 

ii. Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements 

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates, 
judgements and assumptions that affect the repo1ied amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities on the date of the standalone financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year 
rep01ied. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised and future periods are 
affected. 
Key source of estimation of uncertainty as at the date of standalone financial statements, which may cause a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in respect of the following: 

Impairment of financial assets 
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company assesses impairment of financial assets ('Financial instruments') and recognises 
expected credit losses, which are measured through a loss allowance. 
The Company provides for impairment of investment in subsidiaries. lmpainnent exists when there is a diminution in value of 
the investment and the recoverable value of such investment is lower than the carrying value of such investment. 
The Company provides for impairment of trade receivables based on assumptions about risk of default and expected timing of 
collection. The Company uses judgement in making these assmnptions and selecting inputs to the impairment calculation, 
based on the Company's past history, customer's creditworthiness, existing well as forward looking 
estimates at the end of each reporting period. 
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DENAVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U8511ODLt999PTC190362 

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2022 

Impairment of non-financial assets 
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit ('"CGU") exceeds its recoverable amount. which 

is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based 

on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length. for similar assets or observable market prices less 

incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow ("DCF") model. 
The cash flows are derived from the budget for future years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not 

yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The 

recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the 
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 
Defined benefit plans 
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefit and the present value of the gratuity obligation 

is determined using actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may diff er from 

actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality 

rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive 

to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 
The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in 
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post­

employment benefit obligation. 
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. These mortality tables tend to change only at interval 1n 

response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates. 

Fair Value measurement of financial instruments 
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on 

quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using internal valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are 

taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing 

fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions 

about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. 

Taxes 
The Company's major tax jurisdictions is in India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income 

taxes and tax credits, including the amount expected to be paid or refunded. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 

available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of 

deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with 
future tax planning strategies. 

Other estimates 
These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible assets etc 

iii) Basis for consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 comprise the financial statements of Denave India 

Private Limited and its subsidiaries mentioned below (collectively referred to as "the Group'') . Following entities have been 

considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements 

Name of the company 

Subsidiary entities 

Denave Ov1) SDN BHD 
Dena,·e Pte Ltd (abiii to exercise control) 
Denave Euro )e Limited 
Dem1\'e Poland Sp. Z.o.o. 

Count!')' of 
incorporation 

Malavsia 
Sin<>a Jore 
United Kingdom 
Poland 

% of effective voting power held as at 

March 31, 2022 l\Iarch 31. 2021 

100% 100'.\;, 
100% 100~.;, 

100% 
100% 
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DENA VE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U8511ODLI999PTC190362 

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2022 

All the above subsidiaries are under the same management. 
Control exists when the parent has: 
·Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee) 
• Exposure or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 

• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or 

more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary 

and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or 

disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until 

the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiaty. 

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in 

similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial 

statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member's 
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group's accounting 
policies. 

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting elate as that of the 

holding company, i.e., year ended on March 31. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a 

subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the 

financial statements of the parent, to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is 
impracticable to do so. 

Consolidation procedure: 

i. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this 

purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in the 
consol idatecl financial statements at the acquisition date. 

ii. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsiclimy and the parent's portion of equity of 

each subsidiary. The excess of cost to the Company of its investments in the subsiclia1y companies over its share of equity of 

the subsidiary companies, at the date on which the investment in the subsidiaries were made, is recognized as ·Goodwill' being 

an intangible asset in the consolidated financial statements and is tested for an impairment on an annual basis. On the other 

hand, where the share of equity in the subsidiary companies as on the elate of investment is in excess of cost of investments of 

the Company, it is recognized as 'Capital Reserve' and shown in 'Other Equity', in the consolidated financial statements. The 

'Goodwill/ Capital Reserve' is determined separately for each subsidiary company and such amounts are not set off between 
different entities. 

iii. Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities 

of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognized in assets, such as inventory and 

property, plant & equipment are eliminated in foll). Jn the case of jointly controlled entities the balances and transactions are 
eliminated on a proportionate basis. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the 
Group. 
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DENAVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U85110DL1999PTC190362 

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2022 

1.2 Summary of Significant accounting policies 

a. Current versus non-current classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated 

as current when it is: 
Expected to be realised or consumed in normal operating cycle 

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 
A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or 
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 
The .operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation lll cash and cash 

equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

b. Property, plant and equipment 
Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises 

the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade 

discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 
The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date is disclosed under capital work-in­

progress. 
For depreciation purposes, the Company identifies and determines cost of asset significant to the total cost of the asset having 

useful life that is materially different from that of the life of the principal asset and depreciates them separately based on their 

specific useful lives. Expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance 

expenditure. are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year during which such expenses are incurred. 

An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when 

no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant 

and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 

recognized in the statement of profit and Joss when the asset is derecognised. 

Depreciation 
The Company, based on technical assessment made by experts and management estimates, depreciates certain items of 

property, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule ll to 

the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair 

approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. 

The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on a straight line basis on its property, plant and equipment. 

The Company is using useful life different from the life prescribed in Schedule IT of the Companies act based on internal 

technical assessment. 

Asset classification Estimated Useful life 
!(Years) 

Ftunitme and fittings 5 

Office Equipme11t 3 
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DENAVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - 08511ODLJ999PTC190362 

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

MARCH 31, 2022 

Leasehold Improvements are depreciated over the leasehold period or useful life estimated by management. whichever is 

lesser. 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial 

year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

c. Intangible assets 
Intangible assets that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 

losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and 

amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being 

accounted for on a prospective basis. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Internally 

generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in 

the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 
Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate: 

•The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale 
• Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset 
• How the asset will generate future economic benefits 

·The availability ofresources to complete the asset 
• The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development 
Intangible assets are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment. whenever there is an indication that 

the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed 

at least at the end of each reporting period. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognized in the statement of 

profit and loss. An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 

disposal. Gain or loss arising from Derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised. 

A summaiy of amortization policies applied to the Company's intangible assets, is as below: 

Asset classification 
Useful Life 

Amortisation Method 
Internally generated or I 

(Years) accrnired 1 

Software Finite -3 years Amo1tise<l on a strnight line Acquired 
basis over the lite 

Self generated Intangible Software Finite -3 years Amo1tised on a straight line Internally generated 
basis over the life 

d. Impairment of non-financial assets 
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 

exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash· 

generating units (CGU) fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an 

individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or 

groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 

impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less 

cost of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can ~,,,,,~.,,w"' 

appropriate valuation model is used. 

\ 
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DENA VE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U8511ODLJ999PTCI 90362 

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2022 

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately for 
each of the Company's cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast 
calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied 
to project foture cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent 
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for 
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case. this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average 
grovvth rate for the services, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset 
is used. 

Impairment losses including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, 
depreciation I amortization is provided on the revised canying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses 
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or cash-generating 
unit's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the 
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is 
limited so that the canying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the canying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation I amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior 
years. Such reversal is reco.gnized in the statement of profit and loss. 

e. Revenue from contracts with customers 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can 
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable. taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on 
behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the 
prima1y obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to credit risks. 

Revenue is adjusted for expected price concessions based on the management estimates. 
The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised. 
Income from Sales enablement services, Other support services & Human resource outsourcing services 
Revenues from knowledge process outsourcing, human resource outsourcing se1vice contracts are accounted on accrual basis 
on performance of the services agreed in the contract with the customers. 

Contract balances 
(a) Contract assets 
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company 
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a 
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. 
Contract Assets (Unbilled revenue) represents revenue in excess of billing. 

(b) Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time 
is required before payment of the consideration is due). 

( c) Contract liabilities 
A contract liabilitv is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received 
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company 
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or 
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the 

~ 
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Interest income 
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest 
rate. Interest income is included under the head '"Other income" in the statement of profit and loss. 

Export benefits 
Export entitlements in the form of duty scrips issued under the Service Export from India (SEIS) scheme of the Government of 
India are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on realisation of the proceeds from the sale of duty scrips. 

f. Financial Instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instr(1111ent of another entity. 

f (i) Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial 
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular 
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in below categories: 

Debt instruments at amortised cost• Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
Debt instruments. derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

A ·debt instrument" is measured at the amortised cost. if both the following conditions are met: 
( i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows: and 
(ii) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
( SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement. such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
(ElR) method. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. The effective interest method is a method of 
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the debt instrument. or. 
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. 
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other Income" line item. 

A ·debt instrument' is classified as FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met: 
(i) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; 
and 
(ii) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. 
Fair value movements are recognized in OCI. 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument. which does not meet the criteria for categorization as 
at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are 
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit or loss. 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 
category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
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Investment in equity instruments in subsidiary or joint venture or associates 
Investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries or joint venture or associates are carried at cost less provision for impairment. 

if any 

De-recognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily 

derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet) when: 
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received 

cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has 

trans.ferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 

Company has retained. 

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the assets carrying amount and the sum of the 

consideration received and receivable is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. 

Impairment of financial assets 
Jn accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of 

impairment loss on the financial assets and credit risk exposure. The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of 

impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track 

changes in credit risk. Rather. it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. right 

from its initial recognition. 
ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all 
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e .. all cash shortfalls). discounted at the original EIR. ECL allowance (or 

reversal) recognized during the period is considered as income/ expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss. This 

amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the statement of profit or loss. 
The Company uses a provision matrix based on age to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade 

receivables. 

Reclassification of financial assets 
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recog111t1on, no 

reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are 

debt instruments, a reclassification is made only ifthere is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes 

to the business model are expected to be infrequent. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or 

ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the 

reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period 

following the change in business model. 

f(ii) Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of borrowings and payables. net of directly attributable 

transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables, and derivative financial 

instruments. 
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Subsequent measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. Financial liabilities at fair value through the statement 
of profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair 
value through profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial 
date of recognition. and only if the criteria in Ind AS l 09 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL. fair value 
gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently 
transferred to profit or loss. However. the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in 
fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Loans and borrowings 
Borrowings is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recog111t1on. interest-bearing borrowings are 
subsequently measured at am01tised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortization process. 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

Effective interest method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest 
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability. or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost 
Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end 
of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is 
included in the "Finance Costs'' line item. 

De-recognition of financial liabilities 
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged. cancelled or 
have expired, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the 
financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of 
a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the 
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss. 

f(iii) Financial guarantee 
Financial guarantee issued by the Company that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs 
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument, is recognised 
initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. 
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment 
requirements of! nd AS I 09 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

f(iv) Derivative financial instruments 
The Company uses derivative financial instruments. such as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. 
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered 
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the 
and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from 
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit and loss. 
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f (v) Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated balance sheet if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis. to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

g. Leases 
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is. ifthe contract conveys the right 
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

As :dessee 
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of 
low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the 
right to use the underlying assets. 

i. Right-of-use assets 
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is 
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and 
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of·use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities 
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful 
lives of the assets. 

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a 
purchase option. depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. 

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies Ill section (cl) Impairment of non­
financial assets. 

ii. Lease liabilities 
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease 
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) 
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid 
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to 
be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company 
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses 
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, 
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. Jn 
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in 
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease 
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 
The Company's lease liabilities are included in Interest-bearing loans and borrowings. 

iii. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of Buildings and 1\laehinery and 
Equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a 
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of 
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are 
straight-line basis over the lease term. 

on a 
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For arrangements entered into prior to the date of transition, the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain 

lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of the transaction. The Company adopted Ind AS I I 6 using 

the modified retrospective method of adoption in accordance with Para CS (c) (ii) to Ind AS I 16 with the date of initial 

application of April 0 I, 20 I 9. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially 

applying the standard recognised at the date of initial application. 
On adoption oflndAS 116, the Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it: 
• Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics 
• Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial application 
•Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months of the date of initial application 

·Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application 
• Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contained options to extend or terminate the 

As a lessor 
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset arc 

classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct 

costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in 

which they are earned. 

h. Retirement and other employee benefits 

a. Compensated absences 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after 

the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to 

the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The 

liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The 

Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused 

entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 
The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as non-current employee benefit 

for measurement purposes. Such non-current compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the 

projected unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains I losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and 

loss and are not deferred. 

b. Post-employment obligations 

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes: 

i. Gratuity obligations 
Gratuity liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 is a defined benefit obligation. The Plan provides payment to vested 

employees at retirement death or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the 

tenure of employment with the Company. The Company has not funded its gratuity obligation. The cost of providing benefits 

is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method. 
Employee benefits expense in respect of gratuity to employees is presented in accordance with Ind AS I 9. 
Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net 

interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 

defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 

earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement is not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 

periods. 
Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment or 
the Company recognises related restructuring costs. 

'II 
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the 
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss: 
- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs and 
- Net interest expense or income. 

ii. Retirement benefits 
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation. other than 
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as 
an expenditure. when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received 

before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid. the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability 
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received 

before the balance sheet date. then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to. for example. 
a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 

i. Taxes on Income 

Current income tax 
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax charge or credit during the year. Current income tax assets 

and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and 
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted. at the reporting date in the countries 

where the Company operates and generates taxable income. 
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI 
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable tempora1y differences, except: 
• In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the tempora1y differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profits will be available against which those deductible tempora1y differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and 

liabilities are not recognised if the tempora1y difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business 
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

i'v1inimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company 

recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay 
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which l'v1A T credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the 

year in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss 
and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The company reviews the "MAT credit entitlement" asset at each reporting date and 
writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and written off to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised 

or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 

comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in 
OCI or directly in equity. 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off.set if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities. 

j. Fair value measurement 
The Company measures financial instruments. such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 

sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 
• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 

asset or liability, assuming that market participants aet in their best economic interest. 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic 

benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its 
highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 

measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair 

value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole: 
• Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for whieh the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 

or indirectly observable 
• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for whieh the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 

unobservable 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis. the Company determines whether 

transfers have oeeurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is 

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company. At each reporting date, the Company analyses the 

movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the accounting 

policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in 

the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the 

relevant notes. 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 

natu1·e, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

k. Segment reporting 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 

maker. The Board of Directors are identified as the chief operating decision maker. 

The Group has identified following segment 

- Sales Enablement services 

- Staffing services 
- Other support services 
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Segment disclosures have been made for the business segments identified. The analysis of geographical segments is based on 

the areas in which major geographical location of the customer in which the Group operates. 

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Group. Segment revenue, 

segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to the segments on the basis of their relationship 
to the operating activities of the segment. 

I. Earnings per share 
Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCJ for the year by the weighted average number of 

equity shares outstanding during the year. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before OCT for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. 

m. Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. it is 

probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
obligation. 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle present obligation at the end of 

reporting period, taking into account the risk and uncertainty surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using 
the c·ash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. its carrying amount is the present value of these cash flows (when the 

effect of the time value of money is material). When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are 

expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 

will be received and the amount ofreceivable can be measured reliably. 

n. Contingent liabilities & Contingent Assets 
Contingent liability is disclosed for, 
(i) Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or 
(ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 

the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets are not recognised in the 

financial statements. 
Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is 

probable. 

o. Cash dividend to equity holders 
The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorised and the 

distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised \\'hen 

it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity. 

p. Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 

maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits. as defined 

above. 
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in financial liabilities in the balance sheet. 

q. Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acqllls1t1on. construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other 

borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an 

entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange the extent 

regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. l 
~1/ 7 
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DENAVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U85Il ODLJ 999PTC190362 

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2022 

r. Share-based payments 
Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments. whereby 

employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). 

Equity-settled transactions 
The ~ost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate 

valuation model. 
That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the 

period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense 

recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting 

period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense 

or credit in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the 

beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense. 

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of 

awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company's best estimate of the number of 
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any 

other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting 

conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award 

unless there are also service and/or performance conditions. 

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions 

have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective 

of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are 

satisfied. 

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of the 

unmodified award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional expense. measured as at the date of 

modification, is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction. or is 

otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterpart)', any remaining element 

of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately throu.gh profit or loss. 
The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per 
share. 

s. Foreign currencies 
The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (<), which is also the Group's functional currency. For 

each entity the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are 
measured using that functional currency. 
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee whereas the functional currency of foreign subsidiaries is the currency 

of their countries of domicile. Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 

transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are restated into the functional currency using 

exchange rates prevailing on the consolidated balance sheet date. 
Gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are 
included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

Assets and liabilities of entities with functional currency other than presentation currency have been translated to the 

presentation currency using exchange rates prevailing on the consolidated balance sheet date. Statement of profit and loss have 

been translated using average exchange rates for the year. Translation adjustments have been reported as foreign currency 
translation reserve in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. 

s. Standards Issued but not effective 
There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of 
financial statements. 



DENA VE INDIA PIUVA TE LIMITED 

CIN - U851 lODL1999PTC190362 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAIKH 31, 2022 

(All amounts are i11 lakhs of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

Note 2: Property, plant and equipment 

Computers 

Leasehold Furniture and data 
Vehicles 

Office 
Total 

improvements and Fixtures processing Equipment 

units 
Gross block- at cost 

As at.April I, 2020 26.24 0.77 63.11 12.30 14.40 116.82 
Additions 6.36 0.77 7.13 
Disposals 
As at March 31, 2021 26.24 0.77 69.47 12.30 15.17 123.95 

Additions 242.50 0.15 242.65 
Disposals 
As at :\larch 31, 2022 26.24 0.77 311.97 12.30 15.32 366.60 

Accumulated depreciation 
As at April I, 2020 14.72 0.39 33.61 7.34 10.37 66.43 
Charge for the year 3.66 0.17 1261 1.57 1.00 19 01 
Disposals 

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation/ Adjustment 

As at March 31, 2021 18.38 0.56 46.22 8.91 11.37 85.44 

Charge for the year 3.45 0.17 60.14 1.57 0.81 66.14 
Disposals 

F orcign Exchange Fluctuation/ Adjustment 
As at March 31, 2022 21.83 0.73 106.36 10.48 12.18 151.58 

'\ct Block 
As at March 31, 2021 7.86 0.21 23.25 3.39 3.80 38.51 
As at March 31, 2022 4.41 0.04 205.61 1.82 3.14 215.02 

Note 2.1: The Company has not revalued its Property. Plant and Equipment during the year. 

Note 2.2: There arc no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Bcnami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

Note 2.3: 1\ll the property, plant and equipments have been offered as collateral security to Banks for availing various working capital 
facil itics as stated in Note 19. 

Note 2A: Share in Joint venture (Property, plant and equipment) 

Amount in~ 
Gross block- at cost 
As at April 1, 2020 

Additions 

Disposals 
As at March 31, 2021 

Additions 

Disposals 

As at March 31, 2022 

Accumulated amortisation 

As at Aprill, 2020 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation/ Adjustment 

As at March 31, 2021 

Charge for the year 
Disposals 

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation/ Adjustment 
As at March 31, 2022 

Net liook Yaluc: 

As at March 31, 2021 

As at March 31, 2022 

\~s'z/ 

27.50 

27.50 

27.50 

18.26 
9.24 

27.50 

27.50 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All 1111101111ts are i11 lakhs of l11di1111 Rupees 1111/ess otherwise stated) 

Note 3: Other Intangible Assets 

Gross block- at cost 
As at April I, 2020 
Additions 

Disposals 
As at March 31, 2021 

Additions 

Disposals 
As at March 31, 2022 

Accumulated amortisation 
As at April I, 2020 
Charge for the year 
Disposals 

As at i\farch 31, 2021 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 
As at March 31, 2022 

Net book value: 
As at Mai-ch 31, 2021 

As at i\larch 31, 2022 

Computer Software 

U14.48 

1,714.48 

1,714.48 

U00.85 
3 I 9.68 

1,620.53 

93.95 

I 714.48 

93.95 

Note 3.1: The Company has not revalued its intangible assets during the year. 

Note 3.2: There arc no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any bcnami property under the flenaim Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act.1988 and rules made thereunder 

Note 4: Right - of~ use assets 

Gross hlock- at cost 
As at April I. 2020 
Additions 

Disposals 
As at March 31, 2021 

Additions 

Disposals 
As at March 31, 2022 

Accumulated depreciation 
As at April 1, 2020 
Charge for the year 

Disposals 

As at March 31, 2021 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 
As at March 31, 2022 

Net hook value: 
As at i\farch 31, 2021 

As at March 31, 2022 

Right - of~ use assets 

302.67 

302.67 

305.20 
302.67 
305.20 

110.25 
110.25 

220.50 

107.60 
302.67 

25.43 

82.17 

279.77 

Note .4.1: The Company has not revalued its Right of use assets during the year. 

Note 4.2: There arc no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any bcnami property under the Bcnam1 Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act. 1988 and rules made thereunder 
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DENA VE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - lJ8511ODLl999PTC190362 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in lakfls o(lndian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

5 Investments!Non-current) 

·Unquoted equity instruments in subsidiaries (At cost) 
Investment in Denave Poland Sp. Z.o.o., Poland 
[100 (March 31, 2021 - 100) Equity Shares of50 PLN each]- 100% Holding 

(March 31, 2021 - 100% holding) 

Aggregate value of unquoted investments 
Aggregate value of provision for impairment 

Notes: 

As at As at 
March 31 2022 March 31, 2021 

0.90 

0.90 

5.1 During the previous year, there are no significant transactions in Denave Poland Sp. Z.o.o., Poland that requires to be 

consolidated in these financial statements. Hence, the investment is continued to be disclosed under the head investment. 

5.2 There are no significant restrictions on the rights of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income 

and proceeds disposal except as per the Master Directions/ Circulars and related circulars. notifications issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India under the Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999. With regard to the investment made m 

Denave Poland Sp. Z.o.o. the Company is in the process of compliance of filing the necessary documents. 

5.3 The Company has acquired the right to 100 shares of 50 PLN each in Den ave Poland Sp. Z.o.o .. Poland (I 00° o 

shareholding) in respect of which the amount is pending transfer to complete such acquisition. Hence, the investments 

have been recognised at cost of z0.90 lakhs (March 3 L 2021 - z0.90 lakhs) with a corresponding liability of equal 
amount. 

(The space has been intentionally left blank) 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are i11 la/i/1s o(lndian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

6 Loans [Non Current] 
Loans receivables considered good-Unsecured 

·Loans to employees 

Notes 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

15.84 
15.84 

6.1 The above are interest free loans given to employees. The terms and conditions of the loans given are, primafacie. not 
prejudicial to the Company's interest. The repayment of principal has been stipulated and the repayments have been 

regular. There is no overdue amount as at the year end. 
6.2 There is no loan given falling due during the year. which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the 

overdues of existing loans given to the same party. 

7 Other financial assets [Non-current) 
Security Deposits 
Fixed deposits held as lien with bank having original maturity more than 12 
months [Refer note below] 

113.98 
230.00 

343.98 

Note: the above fixed deposits are lien marked towards working capital facilities as stated in note 19 

8 Deferred tax assets (net) 
Deferred Tax assets: 
On timing differences of expenditure 
On timing differences of depreciation 

9 ·Income Tax Assets (Non-Current) 
Income tax assets [Tax deducted at source (net of provisions)] 
Income tax paid under protest 

10 Other non-current assets 
Others 
Deferred payroll expense 

11 Trade Receivables 
(At Amortised Cost) 
Trade receivables 
Trade receivable from related parties 

Security details 
Considered good, Secured 
Considered good, Unsecured 
Trade receivables considered good-Unsecured 
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

. Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 

239.25 
75.49 

314.74 

404.84 
137.05 
541.89 

1.02 
1.02 

3.049.40 

3,049.40 

3.049.40 

0.33 
3,049.73 

(0.33) 

141.28 
230.00 

371.28 

162.73 
157.74 

295.29 
137.05 
432.34 

2.805.22 

2,805.22 

2.805 22 

3906 
2,844.28 

(39.06) 

2,805.22 

Page 25 of 53 



DENAVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U8511ODLl999PTC190362 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in laklls of Indian Rupees unless otherivise stated) 

Particulars 

Trade Receivables (At Amortised Cost) 
. (i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 
- Not due 
- Less than 6 months 
- 6 months - 1 year 
- 1-2 years 
- 2-3 years 
- More than 3 years 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase 

in credit risk 
- Not due 
- Less than 6 months 
- 6 months - 1 year 
- 1-2 years 
- 2-3 years 
- More than 3 years 
(iii) Undisputed Tracie Receivables - credit impaired 
- Not due 
- Less than 6 months 
- 6 months - 1 year 
- l-2years 
- 2-3 years 
- More than 3 years 
(iv) Disputed Tracie Receivables - considered good 

·-Not due 
- Less than 6 months 
- 6 months - 1 year 
- 1-2 years 
- 2-3 years 
- More than 3 years 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in 

credit risk 
- Not due 
- Less than 6 months 
- 6 months - 1 year 
- 1-2 years 
- 2-3 years 
- More than 3 years 
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
- Not due 
- Less than 6 months 
- 6 months - I year 
- 1-2 years 
- 2-3 years 
- More than 3 years 

(Less): Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 
'Total Trade Receivables 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

2.422.50 
626.90 

0.33 

2,642.49 
157.37 

5.35 

39.06 

3,049. 73 2,844.28 
(0.33) (39.06) 

3,049.40 2,805.22 



DENAVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U85110DL1999PTC190362 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in la kits of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

12 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

. Balance with banks 

-In current accounts 
-In EEFC account 

Cash on hand 

Notes: 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

2,015.07 
508.85 

0. 15 

2,524.07 

1,089.44 
542.60 

0.20 

1,632.24 

12.1 Working capital facilities are having a debit balance as at the end of the current year and previous year, hence the same is 

disclosed in Cash & Bank Balances 

12.2 For other notes on borrowings, refer note 19 

13 Loans [Current) 

Loans receivables considered good-Unsecured 
Loans to employees 

14 Other Financial Assets[current) 

Security Deposits 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 

15 Other current assets 
·Unsecured 

Advance other than capital advances 
- Advance to Suppliers (considered good) 
Unbilled Revenue 
Prepaid Expense 

Deferred payroll expense 
Other Advances 
- Considered Good 

(The space has been intentionally /efi blank) 

12.92 

12.92 

23.00 
20.37 

43.37 

30.40 
2242.25 

102.92 
2.61 

24.05 

2,402.23 

13.73 
6.57 

20.30 

9.58 
I .577.65 

I 06.48 

23.67 

1,717.38 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2022 
(All amounts are in /aklls of Indian Rupees 1111/ess otherwise stated) 

16 E "t SI ,QUI y rnre C "t I ap1 a 
Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Authorised: 
5,00,00.000 (March 3 I, 2021 - 5,00,00,000) Equity shares of z 11- each 500.00 500.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up: 
1,78. 76,358 (March 31, 2021- 1,73,73,741) number of equity Shares of z 11- 178.76 173.74 
each fully paid up 

178.76 173.74 

16.1 R T f f I CCOllCI Ia 10n 0 s iares a t ti b . IC egmnmg an cl t h a t e en cl ftl fi . I 0 IC mancia year 
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

No. of Shares Amount in~ No. of Shares Amount in~ 

As at the beginning of the financial 1,73,73,741 173.74 1,73,73,741 173.74 
year 
Add: Shares issued during the 5,02,617 5.02 - -
financial year (Refer note below) 
As at the end of the financial year I 78,76,358 178.76 I 73,73 741 173.74 . 
Note: The Company had issued the above equity shares pursuant to proceeds received trom exercise ot ESOPs and such 
funds were raised for the business purposes without specific purpose of utilisation in respect of such issue. 

16.2 p art1cu ars o s iare JO ers 10 mer more t ian f I I Id I Id" 5°1. h 0 s I C ares 111 t 1e ompany 
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

No. of shares held %i of holdin2 No. of shares held o;., of holdin2 
Updater Services Private Limited 96,66,329 54.07% - -
Snehashish Bhattacharjee 31.63.748 17.70% 53,26,367 30.66% 
Debabrata Maiumdar 25,23. l 05 14.11% 51,51,367 29.65% 
Ramaswamy Narayan 25,23, 105 14.11% 51,51,367 29.65% 
Anubrata Banerjee - - 13,13,148 7.56% 

As per the records of the company, including its register of share holders/ members and other declarations received from 
shareholders regarding the beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of 
shares. 

16.3 SI iare 10 Id" cl ·1 fl Id" Ill!! etai s o JO mg company 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

No. of shares held I % of holding No. of shares held I % of holding 
Updater Services Private Limited 96,66,329 I 54.07% - I 0.00% 

On 28th October 2021, Updater Services Private Limited ("UDS") has acquired 96,66.329 equity shares of the Company 
representing 54.07% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company. subsequent to which UDS is the holding 
company of the Company. 

16.4 Shareholding details of promoters 
E SI cl ,qmty, iares hel by promoters as at M a1·ch 31, 2022 

Promoter name No. of Shares 'Yoof total shares 
% Change during 

the year 
Snehashish Bhattacharjee 31,63,748 17.70% -12.96% 
Debabrata Majumdar 25,23, 105 14.11% -15.54% 
Ramaswamv Narayan 25.23, 105 14.11% -15.54% 



DENAVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - U8511ODLl999PTC190362 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in /aklls of Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

Eauity Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 20 21 

Promoter name No. of Shares 'Yoof total shares 
0
;,, Change during 

the year 
Snehashish Bhattacharjee 53,26,367 30.66% 0.00% 
Debabrata Majumdar 51,51,367 29.65% 0.00% 
Ramaswamy Narayan 51.51,367 29.65% 0.00% 

16.5 Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock options 
The Company's Employee stock option plan-2018 "ESOP-2018" came into effect from 0 !st March, 2018. It was 
approved by the Board of Directors ('the Board') in the meeting held on 0 I st March. 2018, and by the members of the 
Company in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 0 l st March, 2018 and further modified vide Board resolution 
dated 4th April, 2018; 30th January, 2020 and 31st December 2020. 
The Company's Employee stock option plan-2021 "ESOP-2021" came into effect from 24th November. 2021. It was 
approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on 23rd November, 202 L and by the members of the Company 
in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 24th November, 2021. 

The vesting period for conversion of Options is as follows: 
One year from the date of acceptance of the offer :25% of the Options vests 
On completion of two years from the grant of the offer : 25% of the Options vests 
On completion of three years from the grant of the offer: 50% of the Options vests 

The Options have been granted at Exercise Price per share which shall be the Fair Value of the options at the time or 
grant or any other price as determined by the Compensation Committee. ''Fair Value of Shares" means the Par Value of 
shares for employees granted options in the first year and thereafter, will mean the Book Value of the equity shares based 
on the latest audited annual accounts of the Company (or) such price as the Compensation Committee may decide from 
time to time. 

16.6 Terms and rights attached to equity shares: 
- The Company has only one class of equity shares on I/- each 
- Each share holder is entitled to one vote for one share. 
- In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of 
the company after payment of all liabilities and preference shareholders. The distribution will be in proportion to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

16.7 During the last five years ending March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022 
- No Equity shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash. 
- No shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares. 
- No shares were bought back. 

16.8 Others 
-There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment, 
except as stated in Note no. 16.5, pursuant to Employee Stock Option Plan - 2018, where the total number of value of 
options granted by the Company shall not exceed 7% (March 31, 2021 - 7%) of the issued and paid up capital and free 
reserves of the Company at any point of time. 
-There are no shares that have been issued. subscribed but not fully paid up. 
-The Company has not issued any securities convertible into equity/preference shares 
-There are no calls unpaid. 
-There are no forfeited shares. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in laklzs of Indian Rupees unless otlterwise stated) 

17 Other Equity 

. General Reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

Retained Earnings 
Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
Opening balance 
Add:-
Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Transfer from Employee stock option reserve for the ESOPs exercised and 
shares issued during the year (PY - Nil per share) 
Less:-
Interim Dividend paid 
Balance at the end of the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Opening balance 
Add: Additions /(Deletions) 
Balance at the end of the year 

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 
Opening balance 
Add: Addition during the year 

·Closing Balance 

Employee stock option reserve 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Add: Stock Options accumulated during the year 
(Less): Stock Options exercised during the year 
Balance at the end of the year 

Closing balance 

17.l Nature and purpose of reserves: 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

72.16 72.16 
72.16 72.16 

3,611.65 3,214.27 

1,114.43 597.38 
81.98 

200.00 
4 808.06 3611.65 

(44.30) (28.23) 
(74.24) (16.07) 

(118.54) ( 44.30) 

34.20 12.03 
30.71 22.17 
64.91 34.20 

180.80 133.15 
129.57 47.65 
(8 J.98) 

228.39 180.80 

5 054.98 3 854.51 

General Reserve: Under the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of 

net income at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to 
ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that 
year, then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to 

introduction of the Companies Act, 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage of the net profit 
to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised 
only in accordance with the specific requirements of the Companies Act. 2013. 

Employee stock option reserve- Share based payments reserves represents employee share based expense recognised in 

fair valuation of option expenses on ESOPs granted to employees. 

17.2. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2022. Hence provisions of section 
123 of the Companies Act. 2013 is not applicable. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in lakhs o(Jndian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

18 Prnvisions !Non-current] 
Provision for Employee benefits 

Provision for Compensated Absences 
Provision for Gratuity 

19 Borrowings!Current] 
Secured 
a)Loans repayable on demand 

(!)from banks 

39.24 
253.61 
292.85 

19.1 The Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

19.2 Yes Bank Sanction terms 

45.29 
175.77 
221.06 

i) First pari passu on the current assets and movable fixed assets (Both present and future) except vehicle and other 
equipment hypothecated under other loans. 
ii) First pari passu charge on Immovable fixed assets (both present & future). 
iii) Unconditional and irrevocable personal guarantee of Mr. Snehashish Bhattachatjee, Mr. Debabrata Mazumdar and 
Mr. R Narayan. 
iv) Lien of Fixed deposit on 1,00,00.000/- [March 31, 2021- { 1,00,00,000/-] and interest accrued on such deposit 
v) lnterest rate is charged at applicable rate of 1.30% [March 31, 2021- 1.30%] over and above bank external benchmark 
rate for overdratl and bill discounting facilities respectively. 

19.3 HDFC Bank sanction terms: 
i) First pari passu on the current assets and movable fixed assets (Both present and future) 

.ii)First pari passu charge over current & future movable and immovable fixed assets ofthe company. 
iii) Personal guarantee of Mr. Snehashish Bhattachmjee, Mr. Debabrata Mazumdar and Mr. R Narayan 
iv) Lien of fixed deposit of { l ,00,00,000/-(March 31, 2021 - { 1,00,00,000/-] and interest accrued on such depsoit 
v) Interest rate is charged at applicable rate 1.15% [March 31, 2021 - 1.15%] over I year MCLR [floating] for overdraft 
and for bills discounting facility is as mutually agreed by the company & the bank. 

19.4 The terms of sanction relating to the above borrowings have expired and the Company is in the process of renewing the 
sanction. 

19.5 Working capital facilities are debit balances as at the end of the current year and previous year. hence the same is 
disclosed in Cash & Bank Balances under Note l 2. 

19.6 There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statuto1y period. 

19. 7 The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 
lender. 

19.8 The above funds have not been availed/utilised by the Company on account of or to meet the obligations of its 

subsidiaries. associates or joint ventures and the above loans are not secured by way of pledge of securities held in its 
subsidiaries. joint ventures or associate companies. The above funds have not been used for long term purposes of the 
Company 

19.9 There are no material differences in the amounts of current assets (provided as security for the above working capital 
·facilities) reported in the returns/statements submitted to the banks as at the end of each quarter 
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20 Trade Payables 
(At Amortised Cost) 

(a) Dues of micro and small enterprises 
(b) Dues to Related parties [Refer note 36] 
( c) Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Trade payables (At Amortised Cost) 

(i) MSME 
a) Disputed 
- Not due 
- Less than l year 
- 1-2 years 
- 2-3 years 
- More than 3 years 

b) Undisputed 
- Not due 
- Less than I year 
- 1-2 years 
- 2-3 years 
- More than 3 years 

c) Unbilled 

(ii) Others 
a) Disputed 
- Not due 
- Less than l year 
- 1-2 years 
- 2-3 years 
- More than 3 years 

b) Undisputed 
- Not due 
- Less than I year 
- 1-2 years 
- 2-3 years 
- !\fore than 3 years 

c) Unbilled 

As at ":\s at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

~/ 

134.76 

677.33 
812.09 

5.64 
24.44 

104.68 

119.71 
181.93 
27.85 

347.84 
812.09 

82.97 

647.31 
730.28 

18A4 
1.85 

62.68 

119.69 
167.70 
24.18 

335.74 
730.28 

Page 32 of 53 



DENA VE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN - l1851lODLl999PTC190362 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in lakfls o[lndian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

21 Other Financial Liabilities [Current] 
Others 
Credit card dues 

. Employee benefits payable 
Others 

22 Other Current Liabilities 
Unaccrued revenue 
Deterred Interest Income 
Advance from Customers 
Dues to Statutory Authorities 

23 Provisions [current) 
Provision for Employee benefits 

Provision for Compensated Absences 
Provision for Gratuity 

(The .space has been intentionally /efi blank) 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 l\fat-ch 31, 2021 

7.40 
2, 129.53 

2,136.93 

171. 75 
14.94 
23.72 

546.39 
756.80 

44.32 
199.63 
243.95 

21.84 
1.662.55 

0.90 
1,685.29 

162.05 
4.62 

448.42 
615.09 

31.59 
116.15 
147.74 
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24 Revenue From Operations 
Sale of Services 
a) Sales Enablement & Other support services 
Sales Enablement & Other support services 
Add/(less) : 
Movement in unbilled revenue (closing - opening) 
Share in joint venture (consulting/ implementation charges) 

b) Staffing Services 
Staffing Services 
Add/(less): Movement in unbilled revenue (closing - opening) 

Other disclosures 
Timing of revenue recognition 
Services transferred over time 

Contract Balances 
Contract Assets - Trade Receivables 
Contract Assets - Unbilled Revenue 
Contract Liabilities - Advance from customers 

(a+b) 

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss with the contracted price: Revenue as per contracted price 
Adjustments: 
- Estimated price concessions 

Adjustments: 
- Estimated price concessions 

25 Other Income 

Interest Income 

- on fixed deposits 
- on income tax refund 
- on unwinding deposits (Ind AS 109) 
- on unwinding employee loans (Ind AS l 09) 

Foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 
Other Non-Operating Income 

Share in Joint venture 

26 Cost of Services 
Cost of Services 

For the year For the year 
ended ended 

March 31 2022 March 31, 2021 

16,722.90 

l,170.54 

17,893.44 

8,592.52 

8,592.52 

26,485.96 

26,485.96 
26,485.96 

3,049.40 
2.242.25 

23.72 

26,485.96 

26,485.96 

15.24 

5.98 
1.84 

106.66 
23.18 

152.90 

19.545 .40 
19,545.40 

14,626.37 

40.3 l 
100.51 

14,767.19 

6,881.88 
83.80 

6,965.68 

21,732.87 

2L732.87 
21,732.87 

2.805 .22 

1.577.65 

21.732.87 

21,732.87 

15.47 
123.02 

6.34 

4.67 
38.87 
15.36 

203.73 

14.916.22 
14,916.22 

Note: Cost of services above consists of direct employee costs and other direct costs 

. operations. 
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27 Employee Benefits Expense 
Salaries and allowances 

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 
· Gratuity expense 

Share based payments to employees 

Staff Welfare Expenses 
Share in Joint venture 

28 Finance Costs 
Interest on borrowings 

Other Finance Charges 

- Loan/Card processing charges 

Interest on Employee loans under Ind AS 109 

Interest on lease liabilities under Ind AS 116 
Share in Joint venture 

29 Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 

Amortisation of intangible assets 

Depreciation of Right-of-use assets 

30 Other Expenses 
Rent 

Electricity Charges 

Repairs & Maintenance: 

- Office 

- Others 

Insurance 

Rates & taxes 

Legal & professional charges [Refer Note 30.1] 

Discount on services rendered 

Licence Fee 

Travelling and Conveyance 

Communication Expenses 

Computer Hire Charges 

Recruitment & Training expenses 

Printing & Stationery 

Bad debts written off 

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts/ (reversal) 

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure [Refer Note 30.2] 
Bank Charges 

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Net) 

Marketing Expenses 

Miscellaneous Expenses 
Share in Joint venture 

For the year For the year 
ended ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

3,587.66 :u50.25 
89.76 50.75 

l 07.15 64.36 
129.57 47.65 
46.91 68.05 

73.36 
3,961.05 3,854.42 

20.21 51.23 

l.72 16.51 
2.10 

12.51 20.80 

0.92 
36.54 89.46 

66.14 28.2·f 
93.95 319.68 

107.60 I I 0.25 
267.69 458.l 7 

127.94 I 95 .09 
51.91 53.56 

2 l.16 53.28 
46.09 42.18 

111.26 88.42 
19.91 23. 19 

201.38 189.08 

93.93 83.55 
117.28 133.03 

14.35 54.73 
170.58 233 .55 
236.58 212.50 

93.20 144.22 
5.95 9.27 

40.36 2.51 
(60.70) (5.39) 

I 2.86 12.13 
7.38 6.92 

45.27 
I 35.30 95.06 

5.55 10.72 

62.13 

1,452.27 S -x·J,745.00 
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For the year For the year 
ended ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

30.l Auditors' Remuneration (included in Legal & Professional Charges) (excluding Taxes) 
a. As auditor 23.76 17.08 
b. For Tax audit 2.30 2.15 

· c. For certification services (including transfer pricing) 1.05 0.80 
d. For taxation services 0.55 0.50 
e. For other services 5.00 3.00 

32.66 23.53 

30.2 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): 

Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Company. The areas for 

CSR activities are as laid down under Schedule VII of Companies Act, 2013 based on the decision taken by the CSR 

committee from time to time. 
The details of amounts spent during the year are as below: 

Particulars 
Amount spent for eligible CSR projects : 
i) Amount required to be spent by the Company 
ii) Amount of expenditure incurred 
iii) Shortfall at the end of the year 
iv) Total of previous years shortfall 
v) Reason for shortfall 

vi) Nature of CSR activities 

vii) Details of related party transactions e.g., contribution to a trust controlled 

by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant accounting 
standard. 

· viii) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering 

into a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during the year 
shall be shown scperately. 

Notes 

2021-22 

12.86 

12.86 

Not applicable 
Refer note a below 

Not applicable 

Not applicable 

2020-21 

12.13 

12.13 

Not applicable 
Refer note b below 

Not applicable 

Not applicable 

a. Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction 

activities, ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance and training to promote rural sports. nationally 
recognised sports. 
b. Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance. promoting 

education, contribution to the prime minister's national relief fund. 
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31 Income Tax 
a. Tl ie components o mcome tax expense or the year en f' fi e I\ arc i. I.~ __ an vear en c arc i ·' . ._ ,:_ d d !J I 3 'JOYJ d d d M I 'l 'l0'J I arc: 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Current tax 239.59 234.99 

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years (0.63) (55.40) 

Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 22.52 96.36 

(Refer Note (a) below) 
Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss 261.48 275.95 

OCI Section 
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year: 
Fair value changes 
Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (103.24) (22.28) 

Income tax charged to OCI 29.00 6.20 
(a) mcludes MAT credit entitlement of <12.21 lakhs (March 31, 2021 - <24.87 lakhs) credited to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

b. Reconciliation of the total tax charge: 
The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differ from the tax charge that would apply if all the profits had 
been charged at India corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by 
I d' . cl f I d d M I 'I 20?? d M I 'l 'l02 I . f ll n Ia S omest1c tax rate or tie year en e arc i.) -~an arc i .J . ~ 1s. as 0 ows: 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Accounting profit before tax 1.375.91 873.33 
Less: Accounting profit before tax that taxed at different rates* 442.71 173.00 
Accounting profit before tax 933.20 700.33 
At India's statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company 27.82% 27.82% 
Profit before income tax multiplied by enacted tax rate 259.62 194.83 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year (0.63) ( 60.40) 
Effect of temporary differences 81.67 (8.34) 
Effect of non-deductible expenses 4.72 2.56 
Adjustment in respect of deferred tax related to earlier years - l 04.49 
Additional deduction under Income Tax based on employment generation (71.20) -
Others ( 1.60) -
Income tax exoense reoorted in the statement of orofit or loss 272.58 233.13 
Note: the profit before tax pertaining to subsidiaries in geographic locations other than India where income is taxed at 
different rates are being reduced for the purpose of the above reconciliation. 

c. The followina table shO\VS deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and chancres recorded in the Income tax ex Jense: 

Particulars 

Effect of temporary difference on 
account of depreciation 
Effect of temporary differences on 
account of expenses 
MAT credit 
Incl AS impact 
Actuarial 0 ain or loss on OCT 
Net deferred tax asset I (liabilities) 
Deferred tax char e/ credit 

Balance sheet Statement of rofit and loss 
As at As at For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
75.49 157.74 82.25 (4.53) 

239.25 162.73 (76.52) 119.56 

( 12.21) (24.87) 

314.74 320.47 
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cl. Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/(Iiabilities) 
Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Opening balance 320.4 7 437.71 
Tax income/( expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss (22.52) (98.57) 
Tax income/( expense) during the year recognised in OCI 29.00 6.20 
Movement in MAT credit balance (adjusted in tax provisions) (12.21) (24.87) 
Closin2 balance 314.74 320.47 

e. There are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 

f. Provision for tax has been made considering the normal provisions of income tax based on management's computation. 

32 Earnings per Equity Share 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Profit/(Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders J ,l 14.43 597.38 
Number of equity shares at the year end 1,78,76,358 L73.73.741 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 1,76,25,050 1.73.73.74 J 

Add: Number of dilutive potential equity shares on account of ESOPs 5,51,334 8.59.299 
Weighted Average diluted Number of Equity Shares 1,81,76,384 1.82.33.040 
Basic Earnings per Share in z 6.23 3.44 
Diluted Earnings uer Share in z 6.13 3.28 

33 Disclosure pursuant to Incl AS 19 "Employee benefits" 

Defined Contribution Plan 
The Company makes contributions to Provident Fund which are defined contribution plan for qualifying employees. The 
Company recognized z8 I 3.38 lakhs (March 31, 2021: z528.73 lakhs) for Provident Fund contributions in the statement of 
profit and loss under the heads of Cost of services and employee benefits expense. 

Defined Benefit Plan 
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan which is unfunded. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of 

Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on leaving the service 
of the company at J 5 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. 

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and 
the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan. 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Present value of funded obligations 453.23 291.91 
Fair value of planned assets - -
Defined Benefit obligation/(asset) 453.23 291.91 
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p ifi db fi ost emp oyment c e me enc 1t p an 
Net benefit expense recognised in statement of profit and loss under 
employee benefit expenses (Note 27) 
Current service cost 
Past service cost 
Net Interest on net defined benefit liability/ (asset) 
Net benefit expense 

Balance Sheet 
D 'I f I etai s o c ianges m present va ue o rd fi db r br f II e me enc 1t o 1gat10ns as o 

Particulars 

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 

Current service cost 
Past Service Cost 
Interest cost on benefit obligations 
Re-measurements due to: 
a. Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions 

Benefits paid 
Benefit obligation at the end of the year 

Actual return on plan assets: 

Remeasurement gain/ (los) in other comprehensive income (OCI) 

Actuarial gain/ (loss) on obligation 
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Change in Demographic Assumption 
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions 
Experience Adjustments 

ows: 

B.eturn on Plan assets, excluding amount included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability. (asset) 

Benefit obligation at the end of the vear 

As at As at March 31, 
March 31, 2022 2021 

86.51 47.36 
- -

19.73 16.99 
106.24 64.35 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

29 l.9 l 251.40 

86.5! 47.36 

-
19.73 16.99 

103.24 22.27 
(48.16) (46.11) 
453.23 291.91 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 :\:larch 31, 2021 

- -
- -

(47.76) -
151.00 22.27 

- -

103.24 22.27 

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company's plans are shown below: 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Salary Growth Rate 5.50% 5.50% 
Discount Rate 7.26% 6.76% 
Withdrawal Rate 

-Up to 30 Years 90% 90% 
-From 31 to 44 years 50% 50% 
-Above 44 years 40% 40% 

Mortality 100%oflALM 100'% oflALM 
(2012 - 14) (2012 - 14) 

Interest rate on net DBO - -
Expected average remaining working life (in vears) 27.17 26.8') 
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A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at March 31, 2022 and March 3 L 2021 are as 
shown below: 

Assumptions Sensitivity Level As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Discount Rate Increase by 0.50% (3.54) (247) 

Discount Rate Decrease by 0.50% 3.61 2.53 
Further Salary Increase Increase by 0.50% 3.38 2.40 
Further Salarv Increase Decrease by 0.50% (3.34) (2.38)' 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2022 is 5 years (March 31. 2021: 5 

years). 
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority. promotion 

and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

The principal assumptions used in determining leave encashment obligations for the Company's plans are shown below: 
The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date 
for the estimated term of the obligations. 

The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and 

other relevant factors. 

34 Contingent liabilities and commitments 
(A) Contingent Liabilities 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 

(i) Income Tax Demands against which entire amount is paid under protest 137.05 137.05 
(Refer Note 9) 

(b) Performance Bank guarantee 5.00 5.00 

Note: 

No provision has been made in these accounts for these disputed tax demands as the management is confident that the 
matter will be ultimately decided in favour of the Company. 

(B) Commitments 

(a) There are no items in the nature of capital commitments, and as such no amounts have been disclosed here. 

35 Lease Disclosures 

Operating Lease : 

Lease disclosures under Ind AS 116 

The Company has lease contracts for buildings used in its operations. Lease of certain building property has lease period 

of more than 2 years for which Lease accounting is adopted under IndAS 116 and Right of use of Asset and Lease 

Liability are recognised 

The Company leases of other properties have lease terms with non-cancellable lease period of 12 months or less. The 

Company applies the 'short-term lease' and 'lease of low-value assets' recognition exemptions for these leases. The 

Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets. 
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Rent Expense includes expense incurred relating to Short term leases and leases of low value assets amounting to March 
3 I, 2022-z 154.35 (included in note 26 and 30) and March 31, 2021-z 195 .09 (included in note 30) 

Total Cash outflow for leases including outflow for short term and low value leases is March 31, 2022- z274.9 I and 

March 31. 2021- z320.49 

The details of carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the 
movements during the year are as follows: 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

As at beginning of the year 87.06 191.66 
Additions 288.90 -
Accretion of interest 12.51 20.80 
Payments (120.56) (125.40) 
Closing Balance 267.90 87.06 
Lease liabilities - Current 89.25 87.06 
Lease liabilities - Non Current 178.65 -

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2022 on an undiscounted basis are as 
follows: 
Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Less than one year 89.25 87.05 
One to five years 178.65 -

More than five vears - -
Total 267.90 87.05 

36 Related Party Disclosures: 

A. D ·1 f cl eta1 s o re ate parties 
Name of the related party Relationship 
Updater Services Private Limited Holding Company (w.e.f October 28, 2021) 
Denave Europe Limited, UK Wholly Owned Subsidiary (w.e.f. June 30, 2020), 

Entity under joint control (till June 29, 2020). 
Denave (M) SON BHD, Malaysia Wholly Owned Subsidiary 
Denave Pte Ltd, Singapore Entity under control 
Denave Poland Sp. Z.o.o. Wholly Owned Subsidiary 
Mr Snehashish Bhattachariee Key Management Personnel (Whole-time Director) 
Mr Debabrata Majumdar Key Management Personnel (Director) 
Mr Ramasvvamy Narayan Key Management Personnel (Director) 
Mr. Raghunandana Tangirala Kev Management Personnel (Nominee Director) (w.e.fNovember 23, 2021) 
Mr. Balaji Swaminathan Key Management Personnel (Nominee Director) (w.e.fNovember 23, 2021) 
Mr. Saravanan Ramachandran Chittary Key Management Personnel (Nominee Director) (w.e.fNovember 23, 2021) 

Mr. Pondicherry Chidambaram Key Management Personnel (Nominee Director) (w.e.fNovember 23, 2021) 
Balasubramanian 
Mr Debashish Bhattacharvva Relative of Kev Management Personnel 

..... 
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B. Details of Related Party Transactions during the year 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Dividend Paid 
Mr Dcbabrata Majumdar - 54.85 
Mr Ramaswamy Narayan - 54.85 
Mr Snehashish Bhattachaijee - 56.72 

Reimbursement of Expenses 
Mr Snehashish Bhattacha1jee 0.41 0.09 
Mr Debabrata Majumdar - 9.20 

Services availed from 
Mr Debashish Bhattacharvva - 9.20 

C. Balance outstanding as at the year 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Due from 
Mr Snehashish Bhattachaijee 0.10 0.52 

Due to 
Mr Dcbabrata ivlaiumdar 0.01 0.01 

D. C _ompensat1on o fl {CV management personnel of the c ompany: 
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Director 
Short-term employee benefits 
· Salary and allowances 72.01 69.48 
Contribution to PF (defined contribution) 2.59 2.59 

Total 74.60 72.07 
"'The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits. 
as these are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole. 

E. During the year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters. Directors, I<l'v1Ps 
and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person during the 
year or outstanding as at the balance sheet date. 

F. All the above related party transactions are in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act, where applicable. 

G. The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors. 

~I 
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37 Capital Management 
The primaiy objective of the Company's capital management policy is to maximise shareholder value 
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves 

attributable to the equity holders. 
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and 

requirements of the financial covenants. The company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. In 
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders. 
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares under constant review by the Board 
The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. The company includes 
within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings (including bonds), trade and other payables. less cash and cash 

. I emuva ents. 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Borrowings - -
Trade Payables 812.09 730.28 
Other Payables 2.893.73 2.300.38 
Less: Cash & Cash equivalents (2.524.07) ( 1,632.24) 

Net Debt - (a) 1,181.75 1,398.42 
Equity Share Capital 178.76 173.74 
Other equity 5.054.98 3,854.51 
Total Equity (b) 5,233.74 4,028.25 
Capital and net debt ( c=a+b) 6.415.49 5.426.67 
Gearing Ratio (a/c) 18.42 'Yt. 25.77°/o 

38 Fair Value Measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the 
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e .. an exit price). 
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair 
values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques. 

A. Fair Value Hierarchy of assets and liabilities 
Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the canying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments 
( ) Tl . bl cl . I d I t: . I f fi . I d f . 1 1· bT . except 111vestments . 11s ta e oes not me u e t 1e air va ues o non- mancia assets an non- 111anc1a 1a 1 1t1es. 

Carrying Value Fair value 
Particulars Level As at March As at March As at As at 

31,2022 31,2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Financial Assets 
Loans- Non current 3 15.84 - 15.84 -
Loans- Current 3 12.92 - 12.92 -
Trade receivables 3 3,049.40 2,805.22 3,049.40 2,805.22 
Cash and cash equivalents 1 2,524.07 1,632.24 2.524.07 1,632.24 
Bank balances (other than above)- 1 230.00 230.00 230.00 230.00 
Non Current 
Other Financial Assets-Non current 3 113.98 141.28 
Other Financial Assets-Current 3 43.37 20.30 43.37 20.30 

5,989.58 4,829.04 5,875.60 4,687.76 
Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings ~ - - - -_) 

Trade Pavables 3 812.09 730.28 812.09 730.28 
Lease Liabilities - Non Current 3 178.65 - 178.65 -

Lease Liabilities - Current 3 89.25 87.05 89.25 87.05 
Other current financial liabilities 3 2,136.93 1,685.29 2, 136.93. ·····•·· I ,685.29 

3,216.92 2,502.62 3,21CY.:9°~~ \i\ & V,</;,2~~02.62 

~/ ~ rr ~t . ']_ 0,~/\LOP}j ~ of s 
~j)>~ :"J \ ,, A' 
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There have been no transfers between the levels during the year. 

B. Valuation techniques 
Short-term financial assets and liabilities 
For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying 

amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: cash 

and balances, Trade receivables, balances other than cash and cash equivalents and trade payables without a specific 

maturity. Such amounts have been classified as Level 2 on the basis that no adjustments have been made to the balances in 

the balance sheet. 

Financial liability at amortised cost 
The fair values of financial liability held-to-maturity are estimated using a effective interest rate model based on 

contractual cash flows using actual yields. 

39 Financial risk management objectives and policies 
The Company's principal financial liabilities is borrowings and trade payables. The main purpose of these financial 

liabilities is to raise finance for the Company's operations. 

The Company has various financial assets such as loan, trade and other receivables, cash and short-term deposits, which 

arise directly from its operations. 

The Company is exposed to credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's Board of Directors oversees the management of 

these risks. The Company's risk management assessment and policies and processes are established to identity and analyse 
the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls. and to monitor such risks and compliance with 

the same. The following disclosures summarises the company's exposure to financial risks 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract. 

leading to a financial loss. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of 
creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness 

of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. The 

Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and loans receivables. 

Trade and other receivables 

Jn cases of customers where credit is allowed, the average credit period on such sale of goods ranges from I day to 90 

days. The customer credit risk is managed by the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to 

customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on the individual credit limits are defined 

in accordance with this assessment and outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. 

Ind AS requires an entity to recognise in profit or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to 

adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 

109. The Company assesses at each date of statements of financial position whether a financial asset or a Company of 

financial assets is impaired. Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses 

or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased 
significantly since initial recognition. 

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based 

on a age wise provision matrix which is prepared considering the historical data for collection of receivables. 

\~. , 
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Exposure to credit risk: 
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk is 
z3.049.40 Lakhs and z2.805.22 Lakhs as at March 31, 2022 and !VJ arch 31, 2021 respectively. being the total of the 

carrying amount of balances with trade receivables. 

Foreign currency risk: 
The company's revenue and net investment in subsidiaries are in foreign currency, as a result there is exposure to the risk 
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The company uses derivative financial instruments wherever applicable. such as 
foreign exchange forward contracts, to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates in respect of its 

forecasted cash flows and trade receivables. 

Bl f I d d f e ow 1s t 1e summary o un 1e 1ge ore1gn currency exposure o re , fi . I I I' bT . omoany s manCJa asse s anc la 1 Itles. 
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

Particulars Foreign Amount in~ Foreign Amount in~ 
currency (lakhs) currency (lakhs) 

Hedged by derivative instruments 
USD forward contract - - 7,35,000 541.36 

Not hedged by derivative instruments 
USD Receivable 25,00,930 1,880.70 5,53,120 393.05 
KR\V Receivable - - 2,41,11,328 15.07 

Total 1,880.70 408.12 

Eff t cc fit b f on oro 1 e ore ax: 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021 
Increase in rate by 2% 21.4 l 7.88 
Decrease in rate bv 2% (21.41) (7.88) 

Interest rate risk: 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company's financial instruments will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rate. 

Liquidity risk: 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The 

objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available to meet its 
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 
to the Company's reputation. The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds on a regular basis. The Company's 
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts 
All financial liabilities are due within I year from the balance sheet date. The existing surplus funds along with the cash 
generated by the company are sufficient to meet its current obligations 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities based on contractual 

undiscounted payments: 
As at March 31, 2022 

Borrowings 
Trade Payables 

Pa rticu la rs 

Other financial liabilities 
Lease Liabilities 

On Demand 

812.09 
2,136.93 

2 949.02 

Less than 12 more than 12 
Total 

months months 

812.09 

89.25 178.65 
89.25 178.65 

~ 
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As at March 31, 2021 

Particulars On Demand 
Less than 12 more than 12 

Total 
months months 

Borrowings - - - -

Trade Payables 730.28 - - 730.28 

Other financial liabilities 1,685.29 - - L685.29 

Lease Liabilities - 87.05 - 87.05 
2,415.57 87.05 - 2,502.62 

40 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 
2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended March 31, 2022 is given below. This information has been determined to the 

extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company: 

Particulars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any 

supplier at the end of each accounting year 
(i) Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 134.76 82.97 
(ii) Interest due on above - -

(b) (i) Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day - -

during the year 
(ii) Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (Section 16) during the year - -

(c) Interest due and payable to suppliers for delay in making payments other than - -
interest under MSMED Act 
(d) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year - -

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - -

years. until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 

23 of the MSMED Act 

41 Segment Reporting 
The Company has identified business segments as its primary segment and geographic segments as its secondary segment. 
Business segments are primarily Sales Enablement, Staffing services, and Other Support Services. Revenues and expenses 

directly attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. 
Expenses which are not directly identifiable to each reportable segment have been allocated on the basis of associated 
revenues of the segment. All other expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as 

Unallocable expenses. 
Geographical revenues are allocated based on the location of the customer. Geographic segments of the Company are 
broadly classified as "In India" and "outside India". 

A. P1·imary segments - Business Segments 

Sales 
Particulars Enablement 

services 
i) Revenue from operations 8,718.43 

(5, 054. 00) 

ii) Identifiable operating expenses 6,813.06 
(4,54547) 

iii) A !located expenses 1,486. l l 
(348.51 

Staffing 
Services 

6.909.84 
(7, 141.40) 

6.170.75 
(5,388.63) 

576.46 
(/,372.91) 

Other Support 
services 

10,857.69 
(9,53747) 

6.561.59 
(4, 982.12; 

3,350.76 

Total 

26,485.96 
(21.73287; 

19.545.40 
( 14, 9 I 622! 
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Particulars 

ii) Segment results 

iii) Unallocable Expenses 

iv) Other Income 

v) Profit before tax 

vi) Income Tax expense 

vii) Other Comprehensive Income 

viii) Profit after tax 

viii) Other Information 
Segment assets 

Unallocable assets 

Total assets 

Unallocable liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Capital expenditure 

Depreciation & Amortisation expense 

Sales 
Enablement 

services 
419.27 

(16002) 

2,027.82 
(l,384. ll) 

Non-cash expenses other than depreciation and amortisation 

Staffing 
Services 

162.63 
(379.85) 

1,435.09 
(J,955. 78) 

B. Secondary segments - Based on Geographical location of the customer 

Particulars In India 

i) Revenue from operations 

ii) Segment assets 

iii) Capital expenditure 

15,628.27 

(/2,195.40) 

3,462.9 l 
(3,339.89) 

495.29 
(6.0/) 

Other Support 
services 

945.34 
(67737) 

2,405.84 
(l,574.29) 

Outside India 

10,857.69 

(9,537.47) 

2.405.84 
( 1.574.29) 

52.56 
( 1.12) 

Total 

1.527.24 
(/, 217 ]-!) 

304.23 
(5./7 6-!) 

152.90 
(20373) 

L375.91 
(87333) 

261.48 
(275 95) 

(74.24) 
16. 07 

L040.19 
(58130) 

5,868. 75 
(4, 9 /-!.I 8) 

3,875.50 
(2, 600. 58) 

9,744.25 
(7, 51./ 76) 

9, 74-1 ]5 
(7, 51./ 76) 

9.744.25 
(7,51-176) 

547.85 
(7 I 3) 

267.69 
(-15817) 

195.35 
(165 83) 

Total 

26,485.96 

(21, 732 87) 

5.868. 75 
(../, 9 /-! I 8) 

547.85 
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Notes to Segment reporting: 
1) Segment assets are identified based on the receivables from the business segment or geographic segment, the capital 

expenditure is not differentiable between various segments and is Unallocable hence the same is disclosed as Unallocable. 

2) Previous years figures are given in brackets. Previous negative figures are given without brackets. 

42 Share-based payments: 
The Company's Employee stock option plan-2018 "ESOP-2018" came into effect from 0 I st March. 2018. It was approved 
by the Board of Directors ('the Board') in the meeting held on 0 I st March, 2018. and by the members of the Company in 

the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 0 I st March, 2018 and further modified vi de Board resolution dated 4th April, 
2018; 30th January, 2020 and 31st December 2020. 

The Company's Employee stock option plan-2021 "ESOP-2021" came into effect from 24th November, 2021. It was 
approved by the Board of Directors ('the Board') in the meeting held on 23rd November, 2021, and by the members of the 

Company in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 24th November, 2021. 

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 04th April 2018 and a resolution of the Shareholders dated 30th 
April 2018, the size of the ESOP pool was amended. Further, amendments were made to vesting period for 2017-18-Block· 
I and 2017-18-Block-II and 2020-21 Block and to a few other clauses. 

The compensation cost of stock options granted to employees has been accounted by the Company using the fair value 
method as per Ind AS 102 - Share based payments. 

When exercisable, each option is convertible into one equity share. 

All the options shall be exercised within the exercise period of 84 months from the date of vesting by paying in full the 
stipulated exercise price per share after which any unexercised options will lapse. 

The expense recognised (net of reversal) for share options during the year is zl 29.57 lakhs (March 31. 2021: z47.65 
lakhs). 

A. Details ofESOP 2018 

Pa rticu la rs 2017-18 2017-18 2018-19 2020-21 2020-21 2021-22 
Block-I Block-II Block-I Block-I Block-II Block-I 

Date of grant 10-Mar-l 8 30-Apr- l 8 30-Apr-l 8 22-Apr-20 30-Dec-20 30-Apr-2 I 
Number granted 2,97,750 2,97,750 2,37,987 47.975 2.35.000 1.37.000 
Surrendered 37,975 - - - - -
Fresh Grant - - - - - -
Total 2,59,775 2,97,750 2,37,987 47,975 2,35,000 1,37,000 

Exercise price (in z) l l 1 1 1 1 
Vesting period 1 vear l vear 1-3 years 1-3 years 1-3 years 1-3 years 
Vesting 25% 10-Mar-19 30-Apr-19 30-Apr-19 22-Apr-21 30-Dec-21 30-Apr-22 
Vesting 25% 10-Mar-20 30-Apr-20 30-Apr-20 22-Apr-22 30-Dec-22 30-Am·-23 
Vesting 50% 1 O-Mar-21 30-Apr-21 30-Apr-2 l 22-Apr-23 30-Dec-23 30-Apr-24 
Vesting conditions There shall be a period of one year between the date of grant of Options and the vesting of 

Options. The vesting is subject to other vesting conditions as per ESOP 2018. 
Method of settlement Eouity Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity 
Modification in terms Refer note 1 Refer note 1 Refer note 2 Refer note 3 Refer note 4 
along with explanation below below below below below 

Note I 

The vesting period has been modified to 100% of the Options - One year from the date of acc~~Br1)JJ~'S!Ter by the 

Compensation committee considering that the said change is not detrimental to the interest oft ~~~1t~\:.it i'clp'at~4.
11

~g~~~loyees. 

~ 
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Note 2 
The vesting period has been modified to 100% of the Options -
a. 50% of the options will vest to the employees after one year from the date of acceptance of the offeL 25% after two 
years from the date of acceptance of the offer and 25% after three years from the date of acceptance of the offer 
b. One year from the date of acceptance of the offer by the Compensation committee for one employee considering that 
the said change is not detrimental to the interest of the participating employees. 
Note 3 
The options includes options which were allotted to the eligible employees from those surrendered in "20 I 7-18 Block I". 
The vesting period has been modified to I 00% of the Options - One year from the date of acceptance of the offer by the 
Compensation committee for one employee considering that the said change is not detrimental to the interest of the 
riarticipating employees. 

Note 4 
The options includes options which were allotted to the eligible employees from those surrendered in "2017-18 Block I". 
Vesting period has been modified to 100% of the options as at the year end for one of the employees considering that the 

said change is not detrimental to the interest of the pmticipating employees. 

BM . l ovement mt h e opt10ns grante d to emp oyees 
Number of options 

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 
2022 2021 

Outstandin.g at the be.ginning of the year 10,78,487 8,33,487 
Options granted during the year 1,37.000 2,82,975 
Weighted average exercise price per option I I 
Options exercised during the year (5,02,617) -
Options surrendered during the vear - (37.975) 
Outstanding at the end of the year 7,12,870 10,78,487 
Exercisable at the end of the year 4,22,120 7,90,987 

C) Fair value of options granted 
The Black-Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering following 
111puts: 
Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Exercise price 1 I 
Expected volatility 0.000001 0.000001 
Expected dividend yield(%) 0 0 
Risk free interest rates 0.0614 0.0614 
Expected life of the option 7 years 7 years 
Weighted average share price 67.31 67.31 
Fair Value of the Option 66.31 66.31 

The expected life of the share options is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative 

of exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility over a 
period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome. 

44 Significant events during the year 
Impact ofCOVID-19 
The outbreak of Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has affected various sectors of indust1y in the global economy. 
However the COVID-19 pandemic has adversely not affected the operations of the Company and currently the 
management is of the opinion that there will not be significant impact on the operations of the 
future as well . 
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The Company commenced its operations on a limited capacity. Since then, the Company has been able to increase its 
operations gradually and attend to its customer requirements. 

The Company has also considered the possible effects of this pandemic on the carrying amounts of property, plant 
equipment, intangible assets, trade receivables, loans and advances, other current assets using reasonable available 
information, estimates and judgement and has determined that none of these balances require a material adjustment to their 
carrying values and does not require to carry out any adjustment in respect of its possible impact in these financial 
statements. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to identify and 
mitigate significant uncertainties relating to its operations. 

45 Disclosures mandated by Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 by way of additional information 

A. Net Assets: Total Assets minus Total Liabilities 

Name of the Entity 

Parent Company: 
Denave India Private Limited 

Subsidiary : Foreign 
Denave (M) SDN BHD 
Denave Europe Limited 
Denave Poland Sp. Z.o.o. 

Significant Control : Foreign 
Denave Pte Limited 

lntercompany elimination and consolidation 
adjustments 

Total 

B. Share in profit and loss 

Name of the Entity 

Parent Company: 
Denave India Private Limited 
Subsidiary: Foreign 
Denave (M) SDN BHD 
Denave Europe Limited 
Denave Poland Sp. Z.o.o. 
Jointly controlled entity : Foreign 
(as per proportionate consolidation method) 
Denave Europe Limited- JV 
Significant Control : Foreign 
Denave Pte Limited 

lntercompany elimination and consolidation 
adjustments 
Total 

As at March 31, 2022 

As a% of Amount 
Consolidated 

Net Assets 

74.72% 3,910.51 

20.41% 1,068.15 
4.61% 241.40 

-0.17% (8.72) 

8.82% 461.4 7 
108.39°1.. 5,672.80 

-8.39% (439.06) 

100.00% 5,233.74 

As at March 31, 2022 

As %of Amount 
consolidated 
profit and loss 

56.37% 586.38 

26.84% 279.22 
15.30% 159.19 
-0.97% (I 0.05) 

2.45% 25.45 
100.00% l,040.19 

0.00% 

100.00% 1,040.19 

As at March 31, 2021 

As a% of Amount 
Consolidated 

Net Assets 

79.18% 3. 189.53 

19.08% 768.52 
2.14% 86.38 

NA NA 

10.51% 423.23 
110.91 •y,, 4,467.66 
-10.91% (439.42) 

100.00'Yo 4,028.24 

As at March 31, 2021 

As% of Amount 
consolidated 

profit and loss 

77.60% 451.12 

-7.92% (46.06) 
-2.25% ( 13.06) 

NA NA 

-9.77% (56.81) 

42.34% 246.11 
100.00% 581.31 

0.00% 
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46 Accounting Ratios 
a) 

Numerator I For the year Numerator I For the year 
Particulars Denominator ended Denominator ended Change in Ratio 

31.03.2022 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 

Current Ratio (in times) 
8,031.99 1.99 6.175.14 1.89 5.29'% 
4,039.01 3.265.45 

Return on Equity Ratio (ROE) (in%) 
I, 114.43 24.06% 597.38 15.71% 53.19% 
4,630.99 3.802.68 

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio (in 26.485.96 5.48 21,732.87 4.27 28.09°1r, 
times) 4,837.26 5,084.18 
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (in 6.349.06 8.23 5360.99 7.68 7.16% 
times) 771.19 697.81 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (in times) 
26.485.96 6.63 21,732.87 7.47 - I I. I 9°/r, 
3,992.98 2,909.69 

Net Profit Ratio (in%) 
I. I 14.43 4.21% 597.38 2.75% 53 .07'~"' 

26,485.96 21,732.87 

Return on capital employed (in%) 
1,412.45 26.99% 962.79 23.90% 12.91% 
5,233.74 4.028.25 

b) Explanation for change in the ratio by more than 25% as compared to the preceding year. 
Return on Equity Ratio has been increased by more than 25% as compared to previous year is mainly due to higher profts 

of two of the subsidiary companies during the current year which were under losses in the previous year. 
Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio has been increased by more than 25% as compared to previous year is mainly due to 
higher revenue during the current year. 

Net Profit Ratio has been increased by more than 25% as compared to previous year is mainly due to higher profts of two 
of the subsidiary companies during the current year which were under losses in the previous year 

c) Based on the assessment of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities. other information accompanying the financial statements, the management is of the opinion that no 

material uncertainty exists as on the date of the balance sheet that the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing 

at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 

d) Items included in numerator and denominator for computing the above mentioned ratios: 

Current Ratio 

Current Ratio = Current Assets/ Current Liabilities 

Return on equity Ratio (ROE) 
Return on equity= Net income I Average.Slrnreholder's equity 

Net Income= Profit after tax but before apportionment of dividend to equity share holders 
Average shareholder's equity= Average of opening and closing equity share capital and reserves and surplus 

Trade Receivable Turnover ratio 

Trade Receivable Turnover ratio= Net credit sales/ Average Account Receivables 
Net credit sales= revenue from operations for the year 

Average Account Receivables= Average of opening and closing trade receivables and unbilled revenue 

Trade Payable Turnover ratio 

Trade Payable Turnover ratio= Net credit Purchases/ Average Trade Payables 
Net credit purchases= Cost of services (excluding direct employee cost)+ Other expenses 

Averngo Trn<l' i>"yobl" cc Averngo ofopeo;og '"d do;;,,g trnd' P'Y"b'" ~ 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
(All amounts are in lakl!s of'fndian Rupees unless otherwise stated) 

Net Capital Turnover ratio 
Net Capital Turnover ratio =Net sales I Working Capital 
Net sales is revenue from operations for the year 
Working capital =current assets minus current liabilities. 

Net Profit Ratio 
Net Profit Ratio= Net Profit/ Net sales 
Net Profit= Profit for the year 
Net sales is revenue from operations for the year 

Return on capital employed (ROCE) 
Return on Capital Employed= Earning before interest and taxes (EBIT) I Capital Employed 
EBTT =Profit for the year+ tax expense+ finance costs 
Capital Employed includes Share Capital and reserves and surplus 

47 Internal Financial Control 
During the year, the Company has evaluated the internal financial controls over financial reporting and has tested its 

effectiveness. This evaluation and testing was carried out considering the framework of the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India. The Company has strengthened the Internal Control system by documenting standard operating 

procedures in respect of financial transactions, segregation of duties, delegation of authority activities. automated controls 

and fixed assets, however forth er strengthening of implementation of certain procedures in under process. 

48 a) To the best of the knowledge and belief of the management of the Company and its subsidaries, no funds have been 

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 

the Company or by any of its subsidaries to any other person or entity. including foreign entities ("Intermediaries'') with 

the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest 

in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company or any of its subsidaries 

("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on bchalfofthe ultimate beneficiaries. 

b) To the best of its knowledge and belief of the management of the Company and its subsidaries. no funds have been 

received by the Company or by any of its subsidaries from any person or entity. including foreign entity r·Funding 

Parties''), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of its subsidaries 

shall directly or indirectly, lender invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries'') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

49 The company does not have any transactions and balances with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, 

50 During the year, the company has not made investments in, has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any 

loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any 
other parties 

51 In the opinion of the Board, none of the assets other than plant and equipment have a value lower on realisation in the 

ordinary course of business than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. 

52 The Company is "deemed to be public company" with effect from March 24, 2022 and the Company is in the process of 

complying with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The management is of the opinion that 

relating to the said pending compliances that arise in the future will not be material. 
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53 Previous Year Figures 
Previous year's figures have been regrouped I reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's 
classification I disclosure. 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Other Notes to financial statements 
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